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Perfect, thanks s47F

From: s47F

Sent: Monday, February 12, 2024 6:11 PM 
To: @health.gov.au> s47E(c), s47F

P (02) 4944 2095 
M 

cinchtransform.com.au 

s47F

s47F

s47F

s47F
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Cc: HERALD, Russell <Russell.Herald@health.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Doc from MMA - DoHAC Confidentiality, Conflict of Interest, Privacy and Secrecy 
Deed Poll [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Hi s47E(c), 

s47F
Please find attached signed Confidentiality, Conflict of Interest, Privacy and Secrecy Deed Poll. 
Could you review and let me know if this is satisfactory. 

Thanks 

Located in Awabakal Country, Newcastle 
NSW, and Yuggera Country, Brisbane QLD 
At CINCH Transform we support flexible 
working hours and if you are receiving this 
email outside standard business hours, 
please don’t feel the need to read, action or 
respond until your working hours. 

Strengthening Business to Better Serve
Communities. 
Watch our vision video > 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under the Professional Standards Legislation. The information contained in this email is confidential. If 
you are not the intended recipient, you are strictly prohibited to read, disclose, re-transmit, copy, distribute, act in reliance on or commercialise 
the information. If you have received this email in Transform guarantee that the integrity of this communication has been maintained nor the 
communication is free of errors, virus or interference. Any views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender and may not 
necessarily reflect the views of CINCH Transform or group of businesses. While CINCH Transform utilises anti-virus software it is the 
addressee/ recipients duty to virus scan and otherwise test the information provided before loading onto any computer system. 

From: @health.gov.au> s47E(c), s47F

Sent: Monday, February 12, 2024 9:38 AM 
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From: HERALD, Russell 
To: 
Subject: FW: Doc from MMA - DoHAC Confidentiality, Conflict of Interest, Privacy and Secrecy Deed Poll 

Date: 
Attachments: 

Importance: 

Monday, 12 February 2024 8:38:00 AM 
image001.jpg 
image002.jpg 
image003.jpg 
image004.jpg 
image005.jpg 
image006.jpg 
image007.jpg 
CINCH - Confidentiality and conflict deed -Transitioning Whitehorse MoW operations to Newcastle MoW.pdf 
High 

[SEC=OFFICIAL] 

I assume you are handling? 

From: s47F

Sent: Friday, February 9, 2024 6:22 PM 
To: HERALD, Russell 
Cc: s47E(c), s47F

This
 do

cu
men

t h
as

 be
en

 re
lea

se
d u

nd
er 

the
 Free

do
m of

 In
for

mati
on

 Act 
19

82
  

by
 th

e D
ep

art
men

t o
f H

ea
lth

, D
isa

bil
ity

 an
d A

ge
ing

Subject: Doc from MMA - DoHAC Confidentiality, Conflict of Interest, Privacy and Secrecy Deed 
Poll 
Importance: High 
REMINDER: Think before you click! This email originated from outside our organisation. Only click links or open 
attachments if you recognise the sender and know the content is safe. 
Hi Russell, 
As you are aware we have been trying to get final payment from MMA for the work we delivered 
in October 2023 under the future fit feasibility program. 
I received a new form to sign from Lakshman (Miles Morgan Australia) yesterday which has the 
departments letterhead. 
I searched for details of the form online however couldn’t find any reference to this particular 
form. 
I have the feeling MMA don’t want to pay us for the work we delivered (I have had lots of 
hurdles, false promises and costs trying to get paid from MMA to date), my trust in them has 
diminished to the point I need to double check everything and we are being held to ransom. 
I don’t see how this form / project even relates to the Feasibility program and therefore 
outstanding payment however I don’t disagree in assurance provided this is standard practice. 
While I don’t agree with the wording in the Schedule – Deed Details point 3. Agreement (– the 
transition to Newcastle has been nothing but disruptive) I dare not change the wording for fear 
of not being paid. 
MMA have requested that if I do not sign this along with a number of other documents CINCH 
will not get paid. 
Could you confirm there is no impediment if I sign the attached, for CINCH doing work with 
department DoHAC or any other Meals on Wheels organisation in the network in the future i.e. 
is the latest form and standard practice (if so I am happy to implement to my other clients). 
Sorry to waste your time on this. 
Many Thanks 
s47F

s47F

s47F

P (02) 4944 2095 
M s47F
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1. PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT 

This Project Management Plan (PMP) is the key planning document for transitioning 
the Whitehorse Meals on Wheels (WMOW) operations to Newcastle Meals on Wheels 
(NMOW), which: 

• Provides clear definition of roles and responsibilities 

• Encourages efficient use of resources through project prioritisation and 
integration 

• Makes transparent the delivery of funded and any unfunded activities 

• Provides better management of risk because the wider context is understood 

• Defines stakeholder needs and communication 

• Includes consideration of required transition activities and outcome 
measurement and reporting activities. 

2. BACKGROUND 

In 2021 Miles Morgan Australia (MMA) was engaged by the Department of Health and 
Aged Care (the Department) to undertake a business transformation and technology 
modernisation program for Meals on Wheels (MOW) providers. 

In September 2022, the governance arrangements and portfolio of work was revised 
to provide a greater level of focus on, and engagement with, frontline service 
providers. 

When Whitehorse City Council (WCC) notified the Department of their intention to 
relinquish their CHSP contracts, Miles Morgan Australia (MMA) was asked to support 
the transition of WCC’s in-home meal delivery service to a not-for-profit entity 
following the Meals on Wheels ethos, gathering information on what effort is required 
to maximise client choice and high-frequent social contact in a sustainable way. 

Whitehorse Meals on Wheels (WMOW) commenced operations in July 2023, as an 
outlet of Newcastle Meals on Wheels (NMOW). Since July 2023 MMA has been 
providing intensive support to prepare, establish and operate the WMOW service. 

As MMA transitions out of WMOW, effort is required to prevent service disruptions. 

The maintenance of WMOW services are vital for the wellbeing of the clients/older 
Australians in the region, as any disruptions could have adverse impacts to their 
health, wellbeing, and overall quality of life. 
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3. GOVERNANCE 

Project governance refers to the set of policies, regulations, functions, processes, 
procedures, and responsibilities that define the establishment, management, and 
control of projects. 

Project governance is a necessary part of project delivery. It provides the project 
team with the required internal controls, while externally, it reassures stakeholders 
that stated objectives will be met on time and on budget. 

3.1 PROJECT GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES 

This Framework promotes the adoption and application of the following principles: 

• Clearly defined governance structures, that respect the dynamic nature of 
operating environments, ensuring all project management activities add value 

• Clearly defined roles and responsibilities within the project team, with a single 
point of accountability within MMA for project delivery 

• A project management culture of improvement and frank disclosure of project 
information, including the recording and communicating of decisions made and 
open scrutiny of project delivery 

• Engaging stakeholders at a level and in a way that reflects their importance to 
the client (identified through the project objectives), fosters trust and promotes 
project value. 

3.2 PROJECT MANAGEMENT CULTURE 

A positive and mature project management culture facilitates open communications 
on status and risk and builds accountability among project team members. 

The characteristics of MMA’s project management culture ensure our approach is 
always: 

Focused – ensuring a coherent alignment between business objectives and 
project outputs and outcomes, assigning the right resources to get the job 
done 

Efficient – utilising, tailoring, or enhancing existing capabilities before creating 
new ones, knowing when and how to re-orientate projects, keeping them fit-
for-purpose 

Effective – flex the focus where necessary over the lifecycle of programs and 
projects, delivering quick wins or added value wherever possible. 
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So as not to disrupt key on-ground operations at WMOW that may disrupt service 
delivery to clients, only the MMA staff specified in this PMP will participate in any 
planning, strategy or project management meeting relating to transition. 

Operational staff employed by MMA will be available for WMOW-specific training and 
handover activities on-site only, and only to incoming NMOW staff who will have 
operational responsibility post-transition. 

No NMOW staff, Board member or other individual operating on behalf of NMOW is to 
contact any MMA staff without the knowledge, and approval of at least the Project 
Sponsor, Project Manager or Project Lead. 

4. PROJECT DELIVERY 

4.1 SCOPE 

The scope of work for the project includes all activities specified in the contract 
between the Department, and MMA: 

• Support secure transition of data, including provision of data updates (as 
amended) 

• Continue to provide client invoice, DEX and volunteer reimbursement data for 
WMOW for January and February 

• Transition operations to business-as-usual (BAU) through development and 
provision to NMOW of standard operating procedures 

• Transition overview report for the Department, in addition to the operational 
documents provided to NMOW as part of this project. 

OUT OF SCOPE 

The following activities are not included in the project scope of works: 

• Operational cost for WMOW (meal suppliers, printing client onboarding 
materials, site cleaning etc) 

• Operational training for NMOW staff (excluding provision of SOP materials and 
basic familiarisation with the site) 

• Any NMOW business decisions that alter/ impact the business model, and 
therefore those aspects of the transition out process 

• Invoicing, DEX or volunteer reimbursement activities related to any meal delivery 
runs after Friday 1 March 2024. 
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updates included in all weekly status reports for oversight by the Project Sponsor and 
the Department. 

There are three project milestones in the project schedule: 

• Milestone 1 - due 2 February 2024 

• Milestone 2 – due 9 February 2024 

• Milestone 3 – due 8 March 2024 

The timeline below shows the forecast submission dates for each deliverable and 
sub-element in the project. 
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5. METHODOLOGY 

MMA’s project management methodology is based on a waterfall approach, where 
activities are broken down into distinct, sequential phases. This approach has been 
adopted due to the dependant relationships of key tasks, where one set of activities 
must be completed as key inputs for later activities. 

INITIATE - In this phase MMA will brief stakeholders on the overall project goal, 
set teaming arrangements, and establish key points of contact. 

PLAN - In this phase MMA will clarify RACI, share a detailed project schedule 
and commence reporting. This phase may result in refinements to scope. 

DELIVER - In this phase MMA will build, adapt, manage, communicate, and 
implement the project. 

ADOPT - In this phase MMA will manage transition to business as usual, and 
any procedural or cultural change that it requires to reach the outcomes and 
benefits. 

ASSESS - In this phase MMA will document successes (including key metrics), 
summarise lessons, and provide insights for continuous improvement. 

This methodology is supported by the use of standard project management artefacts 
including: 

• Project management plan (this document) 

• Project schedule 

• Risk register 

• Progress/status reports 

• Project stakeholder engagement and communications plan (including change 
management where necessary). 

These artefacts will be held and maintained by the Project Manager. 

5.1 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

Quality Assurance (QA) aims to ensure that the project’s outcomes meet or exceed 
the expectations of the stakeholders. 

QA is a key component of this PMP with an emphasises on efficiency, accuracy and 
client satisfaction. For the purposes of quality assurance, our client is the Department. 
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QA METRICS 

Given the time constraints intrinsic to the project, quality will be assessed against 
process and client satisfaction measures. In terms of efficiency, we will strive to 
deliver the project milestones within the timeframes outlined in this PMP and within 
the scope as defined in the contract. In terms of client satisfaction, the deliverables 
will go through a systematic process of review. 

The following QA metrics are established to facilitate the delivery of the project in a 
way that meets the standards of the Department: 

• EFFICIENCY - Achieve a minimum of 90% adherence to the project schedule (as 
amended) 

• CLIENT SATISFACTION - Attain satisfaction with at least 90% of the deliverables, 
as measured by post-delivery feedback. 

QA PROCESS 

The project will have two types of quality assurance process in line with the selected 
metrics. In terms of timeframes a weekly report will be prepared and provided to the 
Department, highlighting schedule and scope variations. 

The risk register will be monitored and reported weekly, along with the schedule and 
scope variations, ensuring that mitigation measures are applied and issues are 
addressed proactively. 

The second type quality assurance strategy is document control, which aims to 
ensure that all project documentation is accurate, up to date and accessible to team 
members and stakeholders. This includes a strict process of approval and review, and 
strict version control protocol ensuring that revisions are properly tracked and 
communicated. All project team members are responsible for adhering to the 
document control procedures. 

All documents will be subject to version control. Each revision will be recorded with a 
version number, date and author or reviewer, ensuring that the most current version 
of any document is readily identifiable. 

In terms of review and approval all key project documents will undergo a review and 
approval process before being issued. 

The review process is outlined on the next page. 
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Given the time constraints on the project, the Department is to be updated on the 
progress of each deliverable as part of the weekly status report and once the 
deliverable is provided to the Department it has five business days to return it for one 
round of comments that will be responded within five business days. 

QA TRANSPARENCY 

A systematic approach will be used for communicating quality-related information: 

• FREQUENCY - Quality updates will be communicated on a weekly basis as part 
of the status report. 

• CHANNELS - Communication will occur via email updates, weekly meetings and 
the status report. 

• STAKEHOLDERS - The stakeholder engagement plan has identified key 
stakeholders that will receive detailed reports provided by the project 
management team. 
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5.2 KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER APPROACH 

This
 do

cu
men

t h
as

 be
en

 re
lea

se
d u

nd
er 

the
 Free

do
m of

 In
for

mati
on

 Act 
19

82
  

by
 th

e D
ep

art
men

t o
f H

ea
lth

, D
isa

bil
ity

 an
d A

ge
ingMMA will follow the knowledge transfer approach outlined in this section and detailed 

in the stakeholder engagement plan (see section 8 below). 

• INFORM - Provide relevant background and contextual information to reach an 
agreed baseline of what knowledge is needed and by whom. 

For knowledge transfer to be successful, recipients must be engaged, have time 
to digest and open to receiving new information. 

• INVOLVE - Create the opportunity for the information recipient to integrate new 
knowledge into their own decision-making processes, owning the outcome of 
the future state from the earliest possible point in time. 

For knowledge transfer to be successful, recipients must accept additional roles 
and responsibilities and not delegate back to the information holders. 

• COLLABORATE - Create a shared responsibility at the point of decision making 
and create feedback loops to project managers, owners and sponsors so that 
activities can be adjusted (where possible) to better support knowledge transfer 
and/or timeframes, scope or budgets adjusted. 

For knowledge transfer to be successful, it is important for decision making to be 
delegated to the relevant people within the usual span of control and not 
centralised (unless this is standard business practice). 

• EMPOWER - Create an environment where knowledge holders can try, test and 
fail, knowing that ‘adoption’ will always require refinement to suit individual 
circumstances, business cultures and operating environments. 

For knowledge transfer to be successful, the handover of decision making 
cannot be left to the last possible moment. 
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The risk ratings and their meaning are: 

• EXTREME - immediate Project Sponsor involvement is required, to actively 
prevent the risk occurring, to reduce the impact or both. The risk profile must be 
reported to the Project Owner. 

• HIGH - Project Sponsor involvement will be required to actively prevent the risk 
from occurring, to reduce the impact or both. The risk must be reported to 
Project Owner. 

• MEDIUM - Project team accepts the risk or manage it by routine project 
management procedures. 

• LOW - Project team monitor this risk, with a focus on the application of any risk 
controls, treatments, or mitigation strategies. 

7.4 RISK TREATMENT 

Treatment of risk involves selecting one or more options for modifying the risk or 
managing the risk to a status acceptable within the risk tolerance of the project. This 
will generally include developing and implementing specific strategies and action 
plans. 

Risk treatment recognises that elimination of risk is not always possible or desirable 
aiming instead to drive the risk as low as is reasonably practicable or achievable 
thereby achieving a balance between the cost of managing the risk and the cost 
should the risk be realised. 

Risk is then reassessed providing an assessment of the residual risk – the level of risk 
with controls and treatments in place. 

Typical strategies for treatment of financial or sustainability risks include: 

• Tolerate or retain or ACCEPT: This strategy is adopted for risks where the impact 
and likelihood cannot be further reduced by practical, realistic means. 

The risk is accepted as part of delivering the project. Acceptance may require 
establishment of a contingency reserve (time, money or resources). 

• Treat or REDUCE: Mitigation involves taking action to reduce the impact or 
likelihood of risk event to an acceptable level. 

MMA’s project teams focus on implementing measures that reduce the risk (be 
that impact, likelihood or both). All mitigation activities require active 
management and frequent review. 

• Transfer or SHARE: This involves the transparent transfer of risk ownership (in 
whole or part) to a party external to the project. 
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Where the risk either exists outside of the project context and has a greater 
impact on other business activities, the risk treatment is better transferred or 
shared. 

• Terminate or AVOID: This involves changing project plans or business activities 
to eliminate the threat posed by the risk. 

Primary is to stop doing whatever is causing the risk. This treatment can lead to 
other issues or reduce opportunities. 

8. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

8.1 ENGAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 

• Transition operations and provide time-boxed support to allow the site to 
operate as business-as-usual 

• Secure transfer of data, including provision of data updates (as amended). 

8.2 KEY STAKEHOLDERS 

MMA has identified the key stakeholders for the project. Criteria for identifying key 
stakeholders include: 

• Will the person or their organisation be directly or indirectly affected by the 
project? 

• Does the person or their organisation hold a position from which they can 
influence the project? 

• Does the person or organisation have an impact on the project’s resources 
(material, personnel, funding)? 

• Does the person or their organisation have any special skills or capabilities the 
Project will require? 

• Does the person or organisation potentially benefit from the project or are they 
able to resist this change? 

Key stakeholders have then had their level of engagement and level of influence 
mapped according to the criteria: 

LEVEL OF ENGAGEMENT 

• LEADING - Aware of the project’s impact and is actively involved 

• SUPPORTING - Aware of the project’s impact and supports the project 

• NEUTRAL - Aware of the project’s impact but neither resists nor supports the 
project 
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Confidentiality and conflict deed for the new MMA contract [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Friday, 2 February 2024 2:29:12 PM 

s47E(c), 
s47E(c), s47F
s47E(c), s47F

From: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Date: 
Attachments: image003.png 

Confidentiality and conflict deed -Transitioning Whitehorse MoW operations to Newcastle MoW MMA.pdf 
Confidentiality and conflict deed -Transitioning Whitehorse MoW operations to Newcastle MoW CINCH.pdf 
Confidentiality and conflict deed -Transitioning Whitehorse MoW operations to Newcastle MoW 
GOSOURCE.pdf 

Hi 
s47E(c), s47F

Can you please send the below and attached to MMA? 

As part of the contract we require a confidentiality and conflict deed for all staff working on the 
project. 

Please find attached the deed for MMA specified personnel to complete. When completing the 
deeds, each person needs to complete a deed individually and follow the instruction below: 

1. Complete Item 1 of the Schedule (page 3) 
2. Make declarations as necessary in Item 4 of the Schedule (including Nil if no conflicts) 

(page 3) 
3. Sign the execution block (page 4) 

In addition, please find attached deeds for CINCH Transform and GoSource staff who are working 
on this project. Can you please pass on these deeds to your subcontractors as well as the 
instructions for completing the deeds? 

Can you please have all deeds back to us by COB 14/2/24 or earlier if possible? 

Kind regards 

s47E(c), s47F This
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Assistant Director – CHSP and Continence Policy Section 

Home Support Operations Branch |Home and Residential Division | Ageing and Aged Care Group 

@health.gov.au 

The Department of Health and Aged Care acknowledges First Nations peoples as the Traditional Owners of Country 
throughout Australia, and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them and 
their cultures, and to all Elders both past and present. 

Australian Government, Department of Health and Aged Care 
T: 02 | E: s47E(c), 

s47F
s47E(c), s47F
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(c) if I disclose Information, I must make sure that any person with whom I share the 
Information has a “need to know” the Information and understands that the Information 
must be treated as confidential and that an offence could apply if the person further shares 
the Information; and 

(d) I must advise the Department and the Organisation immediately if I become aware of any 
unauthorised use or disclosure of the Information (including unauthorised access). 

4. Deletion or delivery of Information 
I acknowledge that: 
(a) the Department has obligations under the Archives Act 1983 and that I must not delete 

the Department’s information unless in accordance with the Department’s policies; and 
(b) when requested by the Department or the Organisation, I must deliver or permanently 

and irreversibly delete, all Information in my possession or control using the methods and 
within the timeframes requested by the Department or the Organisation (whichever the 
case may be). 
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5. Declaring and managing Conflicts of Interest 
(a) I confirm that, to the best of my knowledge, as at the date of this deed, no Conflict of 

Interest exists or is likely to arise in my performance of the work associated with the 
Agreement except in relation to the Conflicts of Interest declared in Item 4 of the Schedule 
to this deed.  

(b) If a Conflict of Interest arises during the course of my work associated with the Agreement 
(whether directly or indirectly), or appears likely to arise, I understand that I must: 
(i) immediately notify the Department in writing of the Conflict of Interest making a full 

disclosure of all relevant information relating to the Conflict of Interest; and 
(ii) take such steps as the Department may reasonably require to resolve or otherwise 

deal with that Conflict of Interest. 
(c) I understand that I am required to complete and submit this deed annually to the 

Department for the duration of the period I am performing work under the Agreement. 

6. Offence provisions 
I understand that: 
(a) disclosure of the Information may be an offence under the Crimes Act 1914 (Cth) and 

other laws; and 
(b) it is an offence under the Criminal Code Act 1995 (Cth) to knowingly give false and 

misleading information to the Commonwealth or its officers or agents. 

7. Indemnity 
I agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Department and the Organisation against any claim, 
loss, liability or expense that the Department or Organisation reasonably incurs as a result of 
breach of this Deed poll. 

8. Waiver 
I understand that provisions of this deed may not be waived except in writing by the Department 
and / or the Organisation, whichever the case may be. 

9. Survival 
This deed will survive the termination, suspension or completion of the Agreement. 

10. Applicable law 
This deed will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the law of the Australian 
Capital Territory. 

Confidentiality, Conflict of Interest, Privacy and Secrecy Deed Poll 2 
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Execution 
EXECUTED as a deed poll 

SIGNED, SEALED and DELIVERED by 
s47F

s47F

Name (print) Name of witness (print) 
s47F

Digitally signed by 
s47F

s47F Digitally signed by 
Date: 2024.02.09 08:37:45 +11'00' Date: 2024.02.09 08:39:03 +11'00' 

s47F

Signature Signature of witness 

9/2/2024 9/2/2024 
Date Date 
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Confidentiality, Conflict of Interest, Privacy and Secrecy Deed Poll 4 

https://2024.02.09
https://2024.02.09
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